
 

Future Land Use Map, 2022 
Village of Lake Orion 

October 30, 2024 

 

 

Mr. Darwin McClary, Village Manager 

Village of Lake Orion 

21 East Church Street 
Lake Orion, Michigan 48362 

 

Subject: 315 N. Lapeer Street: Rezoning Review #1 

 

Mr. McClary: 

We have reviewed the application submitted by Mr. Kyle Westberg of West Investment Group, LLC, to rezone the 
subject site (parcel ID: 09-02-403-020) from the RV, Village Single-Unit Residential District to the RM, Multi-Unit 
District. The property – which is currently occupied by the Lake Orion Community Schools Administration 
Building, surface parking, and detention pond – is under purchase agreement between the applicant and LOCS, 
the Superintendent of which has supplied a letter authorizing the rezoning. This report is provided to ensure that 
the proposed rezoning is in substantial compliance with the Village’s Zoning Ordinance, Master Plan, and 
planning and zoning best practices.  
 

EXISTING CONDITIONS  
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Existing Land Use Current Zoning Future Land Use  

*Subject Site  High School Admin. Building Village Single-Unit Residential Multi-Unit Residential 

North Vacant / Former High School Multi-Unit Residential / PUD Multi-Unit Residential 

South Single-Unit Homes Village Single-Unit Residential Village Single-Unit Residential 

East Single-Unit Homes Village Single-Unit Residential Village Single-Unit Residential 

West Mini-Warehouse Facility Multi-Unit Residential Multi-Unit Residential 

 
RECOMMENDATION  

It is recommended that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the proposed Zoning Map amendment 
for Parcel ID: 09-02-403-020 to be rezoned from RV, Village Single-Unit Residential District to RM, Multi-Unit 
District to Village Council based on the following findings of fact:  

1. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the existing land use patterns of the surrounding parcels and 
provide an orderly transition from the existing commercial and multiple-unit and institutional uses to the 

west and north to the established single-unit neighborhoods to the east and south. The rezoning and 

future redevelopment may also contribute to the vibrant mix of housing options and provide a transition 

from the corridor and downtown commercial districts further west and south. 

2. Rezoning the property to the RM District is fully compatible with surrounding zoning, which includes RM 

zoning to the north and west and RV zoning to the east and south. The single-family zoning has remained 

the same over the years, and the continued vacancy suggests that most uses permitted in the single-

family residential district are not likely viable in this building. 

3. The dimensional requirements of the requested rezoning district (the RM District) can be met. 

4. With development trends geared toward higher density residential and mixed uses, supported by the 

Zoning Ordinance and Master Plan, the proposed rezoning will allow future development of the property 

to more-readily contribute to neighborhood vitality and economic development in the Village.  

5. The request supports a variety of objectives of the 2002 adopted Master Plan and the 2022 Future Land 

Use and Zoning Plan amendment, making the economic reuse of the property highly desirable.  

6. The proposed rezoning will not create a “spot” zone and is not likely to result in an undesirable trend to 

rezone parcels contrary to the Master Plan because of the location/existing conditions of the subject site. 
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REZONING REVIEW 

In accordance with the rezoning criteria of Article 19 of the Zoning Ordinance, we offer the following comments for 
your consideration:  

1. Would the rezoning be consistent with other land uses in the area? 

The subject property is currently located in an area of the Village with a mix of uses. To the north is the 
former high school / Ehman Center, which is also owned by the applicant and approved as a Planned 
Unit Development for multi-unit apartments and flats; the project is undergoing final engineering and site 
plan reviews. To the west is a non-conforming mini-warehouse (self-storage facility), while other 
surrounding properties to the south and east contain single-unit homes, some of which have been 
converted into multi-unit dwellings. 

The use of this corner site as multi-unit housing can be fully aligned with the surrounding land use 
patterns as it provides a transition among the various uses. When a site plan is proposed for the property, 
the applicant must comply with buffering, landscaping and design and engineering requirements so as to 
not burden the neighbors.  

Additionally, both Lapeer Road and Elizabeth Street are classified as Village Major Streets which are 
functionally appropriate for higher traffic volumes that could be generated by the RM District.  

2. Is the proposed zoning district compatible with the zoning classifications of surrounding land? 
The subject property is zoned the RV, Residential Village District and currently contains the LOCS 
administration building, surface parking, and detention pond. The properties to the south and east are 
zoned single-unit residential, while the property to the west is zoned multi-unit residential. The proposed 
rezoning to multi-unit residential would be consistent with the adjacent residential districts.   

If rezoned, future uses permitted by right would include uses permitted in the RL and RV Districts, but 
also two-unit dwellings, multiple-unit dwellings, nursing homes, convalescent homes, rest homes, and 
housing for the elderly, as defined.  After public hearing and subject to special land use approval by the 
Planning Commission, hospitals, funeral homes, bed and breakfast facilities, adult foster care group 
homes, mobile home parks, childcare centers, places of worship, public utility buildings, and wireless 
communication facilities are among the uses that could be permitted. 

3. Could all requirements in the proposed zoning classification be complied with on the subject 

parcel? 

The subject site can conform to the dimensional standards of the RM, Multiple Unit District, per Section 
12.03: Schedule of Regulations.   

4. Have conditions changed since the Zoning Ordinance was adopted? 

The Zoning Ordinance received a complete update in 2007 with minor amendments through 2022.  The 
current single-unit zoning designation has remained the same over the years, and the property will soon 
be vacant. Furter, recent development patterns in the Village have been geared toward higher density 
dwellings and mixed-uses, suggesting that most uses permitted in the single-unit residential district are 
not likely viable for the re-use of this site. 

5. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with both the policies and the uses proposed for that area in 

the Master Plan? If not, is the Plan current and reasonable, or does it need to be updated?   

The following adopted goals and objectives of the 2002 Village Master Plan support the subject rezoning: 
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• Promote and encourage small town village character by protecting and preserving historic homes 

and encouraging historic preservation; 

• Limit multiple-family residential development to areas where they act as buffers between lower 

density single family residential and higher intensity land uses, such as commercial, office and 

major roadways, and only where it can be adequality served by public and private services; 
• Support and encouraged mixed use development in the downtown and near downtown areas.   

• Maintain and enhance the historical character of the Village’s older structures, and encourage the 

office designation of historic buildings and sites; and 

• Improve the function and appearance of local streets by encouraging Village character 

landscaping with street trees, lighting, and sidewalks.  

 

The 2022 Future Land Use and Zoning Plan – and adopted amendment to the Master Plan – further 

affirms the rezoning of this parcel, which supports higher density multi-unit residential in this area. This 

designation is also supported by the public engagement gathered through the Master Plan amendment 

planning effort initiated in 2020.  

 

6. Will the amendment result in permissible exclusionary zoning? 
No, the proposed rezoning will permit the continuance of orderly, residential development in this area of 

the Village.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

McKENNA 

 

 

 

Gage Belko, AICP 

Associate Planner 

 
CC:  Ms. Sonja Stout, Village Clerk, 21 E. Church St., Lake Orion, MI 48362 (stouts@lakeorion.org) 

Mr. Kyle Westberg, Applicant (West Investment Group, LLC), 70 Oakland Ave., Pontiac, MI 48342 
(kwestberg@westconstruction.com)  
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